CRDA

VI

Introductions

Capital Region
Development Authority

100 Columbus Blvd

Suite 500

Hartford, CT 06103-2819
www.crdact.net

CRDA Housing & Neighborhood Committee Meeting
Microsoft Teams Meeting

Friday, August 2, 2024
9:00 am

Agenda

Approval of Minutes from May 9, 2024 Meeting?*

New Projects

a. 65 Elm Street and 100 Capitol Avenue (Bushnell South)
b. Commerce Center Apartments (East Hartford)

Project Updates

a.

b
c.
d

150 Trumbull Street
. 81 Arch Street

30 Laurel Street

. 28 High Street

Next Meeting: September 6, 2024

Adjournment

*Vote item

Microsoft Teams
Join the meeting how

Meeting ID: 298 237 844 012
Passcode: pahqdn

Dial-in by phone
+1 872-242-7941,,8510536444# United States, Chicago

Find a local number

Phone conference ID: 851 053 644#



https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZDg2YmM3ZGUtYTU3ZC00MTJiLWFmNGMtODY4MDMyYjFjMzU4%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2218593aab-f44c-4498-8655-4b7ca01883e7%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%225ee2440f-2df9-488f-b25b-1186d49e7cbc%22%7d

D)\ e T
' Development Authority i crdaot

Housing and Neighborhood Committee Conference Call
Draft Meeting Minutes
May 9, 2024
10:00 a.m.

PRESENT:

Members Present via Microsoft Teams: Chair Joanne Berger-Sweeney, Commissioner Selia
Mosquera-Bruno, Randal Davis, Bob Patricelli and Paul Canning

Staff Present via Microsoft Teams: Mike Freimuth, Derek Peterson, Tony Lazzaro, Joe Geremia and
Kim Hart

Guests Present via Microsoft Teams: Keith Werner (Werner & Co.), Randy Salvatore (RMS), Jane
Davey (Lexington Partners), Anne D’alleva (UConn)

The meeting was called to order by Ms. Berger-Sweeney at 10:00 a.m. and the minutes of the March
18, 2024 meeting were approved on a voice vote.

1. New Projects

a. 241 Asylum Street —Mr. Peterson walked Committee members through the funding
request for conversion of office space in the historic “Cast Iron Building” into residential
units.

In 2018, CRDA provided a $200,000 loan to Werner & Co. for the conversion of four office
units into residential apartments and the balance of that loan stands at $168,000. The
developer is asking for an additional $257,000 for the conversion of the last two floors of
office space. The units are pre-leased and the developer expects a certificate of occupancy
in the summer of 2024. CRDA staff is recommending a loan of $425,000 to pay off the
balance of the original CRDA loan, with the balance used for conversion of the last two
floors.

Mr. Davis expressed the City’s support for the project, emphasizing the value of the
building’s location in the heart of Downtown. Mr. Canning noted that Mr. Peterson’s
comprehensive analysis of the project should serve as a template for future resolutions.
Mr. Freimuth reminded members that the funds to be utilized for this phase of the project
are loan funds that had been repaid to CRDA by other projects. Such funds may be used at
the discretion of the CRDA Board and do not require Bond Commission approval.

@,




The following resolution was read and approved:

“The Executive Director has approval to lend up to $425,000 of CRDA Housing funds over a
two-year term to Werner & Co. (or such acceptable single purpose entity) for the conversion
of two floors of office space to residential at 241 Asylum Street, Hartford at 3.25% interest
with amortizing principal and interest over 25 years. The loan will be used to pay off CRDA’s
existing loan and for conversion costs. The loan shall be a subordinate second position lien
and is subject to other fiduciary diligence deemed necessary by the Executive Director and
CRDA counsel, including but not limited to, approval from the senior lender (NBT) and a
new appraisal.”

b. 275 Windsor — Mr. Peterson walked Committee members through the funding request for
the former RPl campus at 275 Windsor Street. He explained that, in 2021, CRDA secured
funding for the second phase of the DoNo project (“Parcel B”) undertaken by RMS. When
utilization of that site was held up by litigation, the developer asked CRDA in 2023 to amend
its resolution to allow those funds to be used at Parcel B or at the nearby RPI site, which the
developer expected to acquire. To cover expected cost increases, CRDA authorized an
additional $3 million from the stalled 200 Constitution Plaza project, stipulating that it could
be used at 200 Constitution Plaza or at the RPI site for the construction of 269 residential units
and a new garage.

The Parcel B project is no longer held up by litigation and work is underway on the site. RMS
intends to simultaneously develop the RPI site and is seeking a loan of the $3 million
previously authorized by CRDA to assist with site acquisition costs. Mr. Peterson explained
CRDA would loan such funds at 3% interest for a term of ten years, with interest-only
payments in years 1-5 and principal and interest payments in years 6-10.

In response to a question from Mr. Canning, Mr. Freimuth confirmed that this funding was
essentially a bridge loan that would allow the developer to proceed while awaiting other
sources of funding. Mr. Canning questioned the use of a 10-year term and suggested it be
reduced to five years. The developer, Mr. Salvatore, indicated that this was acceptable to
him.

An amendment changing the term of the loan from ten years to five years was approved by the
Committee and the amended resolution was in turn approved:

“The Executive Director has approval to lend up to $3 million to RMS (or such acceptable
single purpose entity) at the terms proposed above, as amended, and to complete other
fiduciary diligence deemed necessary by the Executive Director and CRDA counsel. This
includes but is not limited to the receipt of an independent appraisal valuing the property in
the amount of $3 million or greater.”




®

Ms. Berger-Sweeney requested that future resolutions include all the terms of financial
assistance and not simply reference the terms outlined in other sections of the summary
document. Mr. Freimuth assured the Chair that this resolution would be corrected for
consideration at the Board meeting and that future resolutions would comply with her
request.

64 Pratt Street — Mr. Freimuth reported that CRDA has been asked to assist with the
conversion of office space at 64 Pratt Street (an annex of 242 Trumbull) into student housing
for the University of Connecticut. The top four floors of the building (roughly 84,000 square
feet) would be used to house 200+ students in 75-80 suites.

CRDA will provide a $10 million construction loan to the LAZ, Lexington Partners and
Shelbourne partnership that owns the building, with the loan converting to a permanent note
after refinancing in Year 3. The CRDA note will be reduced from proceeds of the refinancing
(estimated pay down at $2.5 million but could go higher) with the remainder to serve as a 20-
year loan, 30-year amortization at 3% interest. The loan would terminate in Year 20 unless
there is an extension of the UConn lease and can be extended up to 10 years. During the first
three years (construction and initial lease up), the loan will be 3% interest only.

Mr. Freimuth noted that while the loan represents a substantial amount of CRDA funding, the
benefits of the project are significant, In addition to contributing to the absorption of vacant
office space in the City, the presence of students residing Downtown will contribute to the
vibrancy of the area.

Mr. Patricelli questioned whether CRDA funds had ever been used for the benefit of another
State entity and whether such use was appropriate. Mr. Freimuth noted that CRDA funds
continue to be used for the operation of the Regional Market. He also noted that the loan was
being made to the developer and that UConn was a tenant whose presence would
significantly help with underwriting.

Mr. Patricelli inquired as to the layout of the floors and whether these could easily be
converted into apartments should the UConn dorm idea bhe abandoned down the road. Jane
Davey of Lexington Partnhers indicated that the conversion of dorm rooms to residential
apartments would be comparable to converting a hotel into residential units. Ms. D’alleva,
Provost for Academic Affairs at UConn, indicated that suites are the preferred layout at
present, with a communal living room and kitchen space with a shared bathroom and two
bedrooms that function as singles or doubles. Students would also have access to a meal
plan utilizing the new cafeteria in the Hartford Times Building.

Ms. Berger-Sweeney expressed concerns about the property becoming tax exempt. Mr.
Freimuth noted that that nature of the deal would continue its taxation, though there will likely
be a specific City/developer tax agreement structured as part of the overall project approvals.

S,




Mr. Canning expressed his support for the project, noting he warked in this building for many
years. In response to a guestion raised by Mr. Canning, Mr. Freimuth reported that 75-80
suites were planned at a cost of $50k per unit. Ms. D’alleva indicated that the large atrium —
a major drawing point of the building —would provide critical communal space for students.

In response to an additional question from Mr. Canning, Ms. Davey noted that the team has
given some thought to converting the main building at 242 Trumbull into additional housing,
but there are no plans to move forward with that until after the leases of the existing
commercial tenants expire.

Ms. Berger-Sweeny noted that as a member of the Hartford Consortium of Colleges, she
supports this project as step toward promoting the City of Hartford as a “College Town.”

Mr. Patricelli commented that this was an important project in terms of precedence. He
questioned whether this was a unique project or whether it represented the first of other
student housing projects in which CRDA might be involved. Mr. Freimuth reported that other
projects are under consideration, including waork with non-profit organizations and other
higher ed institutions. He noted that while the Temple Street student housing project was not
successful, the 64 Pratt Street building is better suited for this role given its presence on a
vibrant pedestrian street, its impressive atrium space and its location half a block from the XL
Center (where UConn will soon have a larger presence) and one block from the University’s
Business School.

Mr. Davis expressed the City’s support for the project, noting that it will be an excellent
addition to the Downtown. Commissioner Mosquera-Bruno also expressed her support.

The following resolution was adopted:

“The executive director is authorized to lend to the borrower, (via a single purpose entity
acceptable to CRDA) up to $10,000,000 for the purposes of converting the 64 Pratt Street
(annex of 242 Trumbull St.), Hartford into a dormitory for the University of Connecticut with no
lessthan a 20 year lease at the terms outlined above subjectto : 1 /State of Connecticut Bond
Commission authorization, 2/ all funding sources sufficient to complete the project being
committed; and 3/ such fiduciary terms as deemed necessary and appropriate by CRDA legal
counsel and executive director.”

. 2024 Meeting Dates - Mr. Freimuth directed members’ attention to the list of 2024

meeting dates included in the agenda packet. Ms. Berger Sweeny noted that the July 5%
meeting is to be held subject to the call of the Chair and it was unlikely that such meeting
would be held.

The next meeting of the Housing and Neighborhood Committee is scheduled for June 7, 2024.

There being no further business, the Committee adjourned at 11:02 a.m.

O,




Housing & Neighborhood Development Committee
Project: EIm and Capitol

Address: 65 Elm St., and 100 Capitol Ave., Hartford, CT
Sponsor: Spinnaker

Meeting Date: August 2, 2024

Background: 65 Elm Street and 100 Capitol Avenue (The “Project” or “Development”) are part of a
larger redevelopment known as the Bushnell South Neighborhood Development (‘Bushnell South”).
The area includes public and private land for development, controlled by the Goody/Clancy masterplan.
The long-term goal of the plan is to transform 20-acres of empty blocks and surface parking to a new,
mixed-use neighborhood focusing on pedestrian friendly access to multifamily residential, arts,
entertainment, and public spaces. The addition of 65 EIm Street and 100 Capitol Avenue will create
continuity from Main Street to Bushnell Theatre and the State Capitol.

Spinnaker Real Estate Partners (“Spinnaker”) is a national multifamily developer that has already
contributed to the transformation of Bushnell South, including 55 Elm Street, currently under
construction and named “55 Elm Club,” on the same block as the Project. CRDA assisted in the
financing of 55 Elm, with a $7 million permanent loan, and a $6.5 million bridge loan for State Historic
Tax Credits. Spinnaker expects to monetize the tax credits by year-end. Spinnaker’s request is that
funds coming back from tax credits be applied to the 65 EIm and 100 Capitol Avenue Project, consistent
with the Board’s approval of the 55 Elm Street project in March 2021. While both properties, or “phases,”
make up the Project, CRDA is considering 65 EIm and 100 Capitol separately. Spinnaker will start
construction on 65 EIm, and only if the full $6.5 million tax credit is monetized will CRDA participate in
the second phase, applying the returned proceeds to the construction of 100 Capitol Avenue.

The Project: The Development includes two new apartment buildings in Bushnell South consisting of
237 units, with 20% below market rate units (50%-120% AMI). 65 Elm will contain 127 apartment units
and 3,250 sq. ft. of retail, while 100 Capitol will contain 112 apartment units and 5,250 sq. ft. of retail.
The retail is expected to complement the long-term goals of Bushnell South, and may include restaurant
tenants, studios, galleries and shops, consistent with the plan. The unit mix will consist of spacious
studios, one- and two-bedroom apartments, and amenities such as a pool, beer garden, courtyard, a
linear green and a sunken garden that will all be shared. Access to both properties will be to the north
along EIm Street, with additional parking access to the east via Hudson Street. To the south, street
parking will be allowed for tenants along 100 Capitol. A total of 466 parking spaces will support the
Project and 55 EIm Club, providing a total of 1.2 parking spaces per unit.

Proposal: Staff recommend making a loan of up to $8,000,000 to Spinnaker for the development of 127
apartment units at 65 Elm Street in Bushnell South. Only if $6.5 million in tax credits from 55 EIm Street
are monetized, will an additional $1,500,000 in loan proceeds become available for the development
of 112 apartment units at 100 Capitol Avenue. This will result in a total loan allocation of $8 million to
each property (a total of $9.5 million requested from Bond Commission). Each proposed loan will have
a term of 10-years and earn interest at 3.00%, with an interest only period for the first 36 months.
Principal and interest payments will be made for the remaining 84 months, or until the loan pays off.
Interest payments will be calculated using a 360-month amortization schedule and the loan is pre-
payable at any time without penalty.

Resolution: To be considered at the September Housing meeting.



i QD0 Wollon  Setiod
mw M0 d0dol  00ZE3L
LA

SL309

11L000°5229 L

I

#2094 ATNP [CEBER]

e “NOLLINHLSNGD
- ey L30U5U4 OLLION DeeL.

T L1 DNLISIN THL O SV
QI 351 T KLY TIVHE HOLIYILNG THL Z1TD UDIDHY X TVIOCH VO ENALSDD
mor QUNL QT 36 Tk ONETD GHY SXTYAIOS 50W0U CIT040%4 HIIHIA HE S35 TV NE 5

svs

i
ah

.20 ML ELLVIRD NOLWATTD HEFONVHD
¥ RIVDION] L0 00 SHEOR TSIV IV SIND NOLVATIE GO OIHSHIA SOTNIANG
DL UOIALG KOS NBLLY/TSS NI 1292341 -CE° T KIWOWT THOOR ITISI00 T1Y '+

" 4G ML
Q¥ 3415 WTKLXYW ¥ HLIAY Y13 555 00 KITWINIH 30 TVHE SONTONTY dbivt TP '€

SIGIS 1100 W STIVHONEH B YTV 'S a0
bR T T 4D A TIOHG Sk THY 1T

‘I UV SLIT MO SdbeYIs ST OTCE ML WS 30 0N TIVHS 514075,
QN HONE TIS iy AN 00 LON TVHG ST N SINHE INE) G518 IIAXD 20N
“Theied 534075 25000 JHL G S5T7 50 Chad] G211 00 Tivee3 3005 24N1CY RIS T

‘S310N U_,,_Hn_ﬂmu
P

AN21LIINNOD ‘QHOALHYH

INNIAY TOLIYD 001 ANV 133HLS W3 59
ONIQVYD - NV1d LIS

TN % S50 A
ShTd EA0N Ay 335

ANIW4O0T1IAIA ISN-AIXIN A350d0Hd

o e

L B
7= |
|

von

o (3 et
| s

weosa
80,
ovraal

wmm e
(o) - |

notanasz0

~

3

W
PRt
4520 WIATH R

waau

d1S¢

! e o
Unle eI 5L

=T s o5}
il | >

]
=

==

b v 24

LS AT

wor - B

B
e

T

k|




Proforma

Bushnell South - 65 Elm Street

Gross Potential Income

Stabilized (2026)

Residential S 3,031,800
Commercial S 73,125
Other Income S 38,100
Gross Potential Income S 3,143,025
Vacancy Factor

Residential S 168,845
Commercial S 10,969
Total S 179,813
Effective Gross Income 3 2,963,212
Expenses

Real Estate Taxes S 178,714
Insurance S 101,600
Electric S 47,625
Gas S 3,175
Water and Sewer (Net) S 19,050
Telephone / Cable (Net) S 6,350
Repairs + Maintenance S 63,500
Contract Services S 76,200
Management Fee S 94,541
Professional Fees / G+A S 19,050
Turnover S 44,450
Payroll S 206,375
Marketing S 19,050
Residential Leasing Commissions S 10,450
Capital Reserves S 19,050
Total Expenses: S 909,180
Expense Ratio: 31%
Net Operating Income (NOI) S 2,054,032
1st Mtge (Interest) S 1,336,614
2nd Mtge (Interest) S 240,000
Total 1st & 2nd Mortgage S 1,576,614
Net income after mortgage int. S 477,417
DSCR1/0 1.30
Principal Payments S 251,936
DSCR AMORT 1.12 x
DSCR AMORT (10-yr average) 1.14 x
Debt Yield (on 1st mortgage) 9.55%

Loan Balances
Construction Loan
CRDA

Total Loan Balances

Expected 12/31/2024

5 21,500,000
S 8,000,000
S 29,500,000

6%
15%

6%




Proforma
Bushnell South - 100 Capitol Avenue

Gross Potential Income

Stabilized (2026)

Residential S 2,693,400
Commercial S 118,125
Other Income S 168,000
Gross Potential Income S 2,979,525
Vacancy Factor

Residential S 157,377
Commercial S 17,719
Total S 175,096
Effective Gross Income S 2,804,429
Expenses

Real Estate Taxes S 169,124
Insurance S 89,600
Electric S 42,000
Gas S 2,800
Water and Sewer (Net) S 16,800
Telephone / Cable (Net) S 5,600
Repairs + Maintenance S 56,000
Contract Services S 67,200
Management Fee S 89,475
Professional Fees / G+A S 16,800
Turnover S 39,200
Payroll S 182,000
Marketing S 16,800
Residential Leasing Commissions S 11,223
Capital Reserves S 16,800
Total Expenses: S 821,422
Expense Ratio: 29%
Net Operating Income (NOI) S 1,983,007
1st Mtge {Interest) S 1,227,820
2nd Mtge (Interest) S 240,000
Total 1st & 2nd Mortgage S 1,467,820
Net income after mortgage int. S 515,187
DSCRI/O 1.35 X
Principal Payments S 231,430
DSCR AMORT 1.17 X
DSCR AMORT (10-yr average) 1.14 x
Debt Yield (on 1st mortgage) 9.22%

Loan Balances
Construction Loan
CRDA

Total Loan Balances

Expected 12/31/2024

S 21,500,000
S 8,000,000
S 29,500,000

6%
15%

6%







Housing & Neighborhood Development Committee
Project: Commerce Center Apartments

Address: Riverview Square, East Hartford, CT
Sponsor: The Simon Konover Company

Meeting Date: August 2, 2024

Background: Commerce Center Apartments (The “Project”) is a proposed multi-family development
located in East Hartford, consisting of 132 new apartment units along the Connecticut River with
walkability to downtown Hartford. The property is over 35-acres in size, and has been owned and
managed by Eastford Associates, an affiliate of Simon Konover Co. (“Konover”), for over 40-years.
Konover originally envisioned the site as an office development, but with changing workforce dynamics
and the supply-demand imbalance for apartments in Greater Hartford, the highest and best use shifted
towards housing. Konover has approached the Town of East Hartford and CRDA to provide up to $6
million in second-position financing and is close to finalizing an 8-year graduated tax abatement with
the town, which will help make the Project economically feasible. Like other CRDA projects in East
Hartford, the funds are specific to East Hartford and will be made available through a Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU").

The Project: The proposed Project contemplates developing the vacant site into 132 multifamily units.
Early plans show five, three-story buildings surrounding both covered and uncovered surface parking,
with two points of ingress/egress along East River Drive. The unit mix will consist of 17 studios, 33 one-
bedroom, 66 two-bedroom and 16 three-bedroom units. Community amenities include a clubhouse
which will house a management office, fithess center, dedicated work-from-home spaces, a community
room and café area. Outdoor amenities adjacent to the clubhouse include a pool, lounge area and
grilling stations. The site is located between the American Eagle Financial Credit Union and Two Rivers
Magnet School, and benefits from easy highway access to Route 2, Route 15, 1-84 as well as direct
connectivity to trails along the Connecticut River. Walking north along the river provides access to Great
River Park, Founders Plaza (also a priority for redevelopment by the town), the pedestrian friendly
Founders Bridge, and downtown Hartford. South of the Project is riverside greenspace and trails
leading to Goodwin University’s recently built and growing Riverside Campus.

Proposal: Staff recommend making a loan of up to $6,000,000 to Konover for the development of 132
apartment units in East Hartford. The proposed loans will carry a term of 10 years and earn interest at
3.00%, with an interest only period for the first 36 months. Principal and interest payments will be made
for the remaining 84 months, or until the loan pays off. Interest payments will be calculated using a
360-month amortization schedule and the loan is pre-payable at any time without penalty.

Resolution: To be considered at the September Housing meeting.




g
=
O
&
@)
8
jas
o)
=
98]

|
=

o
—
O
<




Proforma

Commerce Center

Stabilized
Gross Potential Income
Residential S 3,924,540
Other Income S 223,560
Gross Potential Income S 4,148,100
Vacancy Factor
Residential ) 207,405
Effective Gross Income S 3,940,695
Expenses
Real Estate Taxes S 755,087
Real Estate Tax Abatement S (755,087)
Current Land Taxes s 48,088
Insurance S 132,000
Utilities S 66,000
Repairs + Maintenance S 211,200
Management Fee 5 118,000
Professional Fees / G+A S 45,540
Payroll S 211,200
Marketing S 33,000
Capital Reserves S 33,000
Total Expenses: S 898,028
Expense Ratio: 23%
Net Operating Income (NOI) S 3,042,667
1st Mtge (Interest) S 1,889,037
2nd Mtge (Interest) $ 180,000
Total 1st & 2nd Mortgage S 2,069,037
Net income after mortgage int. S 973,630
DSCRI/0 1.47 X
Principal Payments $ 326,488
CFADS $ 647,142
DSCR AMORT 1.27 X
DSCR AMORT (10-yr average) 1.23 X
Debt Yield (on 1st morigage) 10.42%
Loan Balances Expected 12/31/2025
Construction Loan $ 29,210,000
CRDA $ 6,000,000
Total Loan Balances S 35,210,000

5%

3%




n [

¥
1

lGREEN

‘
Rosl
2

ey

0|

|

SooR




Housing & Neighborhood Development Committee
Meeting Date: August 2, 2024

Project Updates

150 Trumbull Street: Shelbourne has approached CRDA to review the potential conversion of the old
“Corning House” office building into 46 apartment units above Max’s Trumbull Kitchen. The property
was built in 2009 and early plans anticipate the buildout of 12 studios, 28 one-bedroom units, 5 two-
bedroom units, and 1 three-bedroom unit. Amenities will include a lounge, fithess room, bicycle room,
business center, dog washing station and library. In addition to Trumbull Kitchen, 1,000 sq. ft. of retail
(that connects to Asylum) will be improved and marketed for lease. The space is currently vacant.
CRDA is awaiting updated underwriting and feedback on senior lender interest.

81 Arch Street: As contemplated at the March Board meeting, H.B. Nitkin, developer of the 53-unit
property, is considering the conversion of the ground floor commercial space into residential. The first-
floor space has been vacant since it was completed in 2019, with no prospective tenants in the market.
Initial underwriting anticipates adding 18 units, for a total of 71 apartments. CRDA is in the early process
of reviewing the opportunity.

30 Laurel Street: Since Bond Commission approval in May, CRDA has been in regular communication
with Wonderworks Collective Inc. in anticipation of the selection of a senior lender and beginning due
diligence on the proposed 47-unit apartment conversion close to the Parkville neighborhood. There is
strong interest from banks, with four term sheets being reviewed by ownership. Once a senior lender
is chosen, CRDA will engage third parties in a parallel path with the senior lender; ownership is targeting
a closing in the fourth quarter of 2024.

28 High Street: The borrowing entity for 28 High Street requested CRDA’s consent to borrow funds
from CT Green Bank as part of the commercial property assessed clean energy program (‘C-PACE")
to install solar panels on the Property and reduce utility costs. The C-PACE program requires CT Green
Bank to structure their loans as a first position lien, taking priority over both the senior lender’s (Liberty
Bank) and CRDA’s already subordinated second mortgage. Liberty Bank approved a loan of $124,939,
based on the cost of the solar array (evidence of payment was provided by borrower). The CT Green
Bank’s loan carries a term of 7-years at a 4.6% interest rate with no interest only period. Upon CRDA's
review of property and borrower financials and discussing terms with Vice President Robert Stabile at
Liberty Bank, it was agreed between lenders that the net operating income at the property provided
sufficient debt service coverage to satisfy all lenders (1.30x total).




UOSS{UIIO] PUDE DA 8A18534 YOOZS o
5|pap pooyioqysiau puo do2as Bupnau EpEE o
puny 'dod Butsnop wWoif XIS,
prodassatou .
SU004 [230Y 9T + [DjIUSP[sL 352 YUNNGLS -
saspa| pud sysodap |
bZ0Z/9T/2
9|qUPIOHE §SE/] 19N [PST EL/L8 ETH WSLTS H0STS WESLS 5 LOGT Aamuwiwng
uepen N525
— — e
veoz/Lf | weor/tz/e ahpg'wz| 00T |Nsz$ WIS'ES HBOTS WE'sS Lb |2neT OE
ELOZ/5/0T | E£20L/TL/6 30N MOJJUSED TS - A OF %E MSS| OT/06  [dess WIS ATHES WZ9z§ |8t 35 5T ST
EZOZ/YT/ZT | ECOL/TL/6 GADE'%E[ ODT  |MioES WITTS H6ETS WL B3 WeId 5P IE
€20Z/5/0T | €L0L/8Y/S o] JAGE/ 5 S %5 15 WS 95| OC/0B |IT0SS W95 praT3 WSE'SKS (80T A3|Uj/L OE 3 OZ-8T
%E6 ¥20Z €207/51/8 | CLOZ/8/C | TLOL/LT/TT Roz'we| 00T [iEees FEBHTS | VLSS Sk 583, T 303
520 ¥T0Z/PT/9 | BTOT/T/6 2T0z/0T/6 MOOES+ WB'ES "JAQE "%Z| 0T/08 4SBES WeTs st Holg
Tozfozfor pERYMOLIY ONEB]
£20T/9/2T
%05 dujauay T702/6T/8 | £20Z/9/0T | TIOZ/E/ZT “IROE %E| GZ/o8  [d0wS NTEZLS WE'LTS LbT uoa(IH] [2Aay
TZOT/ST/TL
575202 ¥Z0C/51/9 | VEOL/LL/LE | ECOZ/OITE TACE %E| OL/06 [NEL5S WTETS WE'EsS  |LEC ELES
¥Z0T TTOL/5T/LT | 1200/9T/k | TZ0Z/8t/E W31 A STING 98 99puq %z| OL/08 [T TRS NS8ES WE'ES  [#9T WiE S5
WES Udd JAOE %T ETES
%56 Hupuay OZ0%/0c/6 | S10L/02/6 | OZOL/ST/t wiay sk gT Ao %e| OW08 ILERS N80Z$ WZ'ass  |oLT W, ONeg
8102/0%/6
%iBE TURUP | OZ0L/5L/9 | BYOL/0L/6 | BROL/OL/6 | squepfsewied WE 0T OL/CR |NL995 WrEs P T B VRINAE
L6 EIEUET TZOZ/ST/0T | TCOL/BL/E | OZOC/LL/6 Ueo| JAOE %SL'T /SUN WY IT| OT/06  PISTES WS AOLTS WE'FES Ly WayLgT - THedd
/89T Ajun |30 / £y 53U Mman
%00T Bupusy TZ0Z/91/v | 6T0L/BT/ZT | OTOZ/LT/6 “IAGEUAS %T NESTINES| OOF  |EES [wzTs WTETS WE6LS  [6EL Teid 66 - | kid
TZoz/etfy | 6TOT/LT/OT
%00T BUQUSY | OZOZ/OE/IT | GIOZ/BT/ZT | BLOL/OL/T SKOT%E UEol| 00T  |NSE€SS WETS LT WES BT ETEEE]
%00T Jupuay 610¢/b/T | BLOL/11/CT | BLOL/BT/0T [4T6Z) A 07 %E ueojwiad| 00T [AEws HIZSS WSTTS WSTS T UIMET 0ST-9YT
He pled- ueo| 33pq 340IsIH
%6 TZOT/OTOC | BTOL/Cliv | BIOL/AT/T | LIOZ/LL/6 RO %E VeS| OOT  [%09% SHo8vS ALEBS  [NOSLS B 1IngwnIL 00T
%00T dupuay £10C/62/8 | STOZ/9L/C | 810e/e/T TZ/8 421 JAOE e URO|| OZ/0B  [NE'LSS WE'TS A9ETS WSS 8T T ET
FOOT EDTEE BI0Z/Z/L | LTOC/6Z/TT | LT0L/81/S “IKOT %e Ueo| ULad/uUopanasuos | 0ot (095 WBB'ZS HEBTS CEEE N YHON 3D
%98 dupuzy BTOCT/TE/OT | 610Z/9Z/9 | 810Z/8/8 “JA S %E UED] WIad/UoRanasuod| OZ/08 |NEOLS NICES YETES WITES 99 ufjiv {Te-eoT) 88
L1oz/tiz | otoz/afet
%56 Bunusy LIOZ/BITT | LT0L/ZT/S | ST0L/B[L "I\ O %E VEO] WI3d/UoRanasuoa | 00T |MLYESS ESES HBOZ! WSS'TZs  [T0T Hed 1T
Yl Jupuay LIOZ/8/TL T0Z/TT/S | 910T/8/ZT "JA OE %E Ueo|wisd/Uonannsuos|  0oT  [ME'BSS WrT'BS HBTS WWBZS ST Head TOT
00T Supuay LIOZ/LITT | 9T0Z/ST/TT | L10Z/9T/€ GAOTRZTeW| 00T |ALEOTS We'ss HOBES WETS ES v T8
910z/0z/0T
%88 Jupuay ST0Z/1E/E | STOZ/TT/ZT | STOZ/ST/OT 1Z0z/7 2:nsojaio) ‘uossipey sawod| 00T [)229$ [ T4 WNS'ETS 96 WA
%56 dupuay L10T/6Z/6 | 910L/¥E/E | 9TOZ/BL/T ROL %E> veo|| OE/OL [does s HBEES A Wn Ay 0LE
STOZ/8T/2
00T Hunuay 0Z0Z/TT/TT | ST0Z/ET/L | 0Z0T/6T/1T UASEHEMRO|[ 00T [HL6TS ALETS ASETS WSE'TS ot UleW £3-6.ZT
6107/0Z/6 LT0T/0E/TT
9102/6/6 9T0Z/91/9
STOT/TT/S
%39 Jujuay STOZ/ST/T | PIOZ/ST/L | ST0Z/8T/T ADE%E VeS| ODOr  [dS'TES WOSEGYES  |N90T$ WFZ'TS El W3 ZF-BE
»10Z/6T/3
%00T Bupuay ST0L/8/b | VROE/SL/L | vVOL/6E/9 *JA OE %E-T Ueo] Wiadfuenonisucal  0OT  [MOSS JO0ES EESEH We'is E S[37 98
3 Bupuay ST07/Z2/6 | STOC/LT/E | ¥T0L/GL/9 “IAOL %G Puea| Z| OL/08 |5 €98 WZS No6TS WE'SES  |ZIT 1031deD 06
%56 e SIOZ/0E/5 | pTOT/9T/TT | €20Z/9T/C 930U odeIUeW| 0/08 |AP'E9S Wa'sS W6SES WTSZs (oL Jemade)
PEOT/SL/T | ¥TOL/ST/T 03 PaLI2AUCI/BULIURUY UORINAISUOD
WG Fuuay ETI0Z/S/CT | ELOZ/TL/9 | ETOL/BIS HO PRI 210N ¢| 51/58 |I90T5 WS0TS WETTS WEETS  |06T €R3ads/eIsalas|
%r8 EIRE ET0Z/ST/TT | ETOL/1T/9 | TZOT/VL/E TTOT|PY| OT/08  [HEOTS NS'9s AEETS Wea'vTs (€9 uAY 64T
ETOE/TZ/E |” URDTHUY WY ES TAIABS NSEES
%98 Jupusy EI0Z/6Z/OT | ETOZ/IL/9 | €10Z/SZ/t HOPRd20N| 00T  [ME'ges HOSLS/WE'ES |N20ZS WSF'YS 4 puRIS/ULY TOZ
. |_EIDT/IZ/E
%86 dufuay bICZ/BT/E | ETOZ/ET/E | ETOT/CE/T SFeBLOW pUT NZOTS| OL/08 4295 WLLLS H96TS W5TE5 EH RN LLL
T KiIRSS WSS
\posEa] Asurdnazg PesOD uojssjwwc) | |sAciddy sunpnng s un/$ vaus Uy Yads | Wun/aaL JaL Aun FELTENY]
oTany puog “P8 ¥QuHD B/ “
panoiddy BuisnoK ¥aud



14

qoyal g ‘[puoibay TTT PIOfIILH EET ¢

310U OPUO2 YOSES [DIAUI UO PIJjOI 1S3I3IUI YUM YSEES 10 2IUDIDG MIY ,

3jos woif a30u fo umopAod ,

vZ0z/CT/L
9Tt Arewuwng
20T czoe/se/s | 810Z/T/9 £202/91/T eID ¥00zZ$ a9eusH| MV 39°'99% MN00ES NET9S NLZ'TS € wniAsy /3
UEOT }OSTS 98eIIsH
pios €202 €z0e/Se/S | B8T0T/T/9 | £zoT/9t/e JuelD YOGS SeIRH| MV M0SS J0STS pEEIS MS95S T Aaysy 6T
%00T V/N ¥Z0zZ/12/9 V/N ZZ0Z/02Z/0T |V4HD YHMm WLID3-00 UBOT %Z SPUNJ AMD | HY  |DIZIS NTS 0SS Wt'sTS ¥3 sUCWWOoD pJojpag
20T €702/51/¢ V/N TZOT/TT/0T | UMOPANG %T +'SIA QT %S TSpund AMD | BN [NSELS N98TS ewes N9t'6S Sg Head §/2
20T zzoe/te/Tt V/N TZ0Z/T2/0T | UMopANg %T + 'SIA 0T %S'T SPUNd AUD | 0zZ/08  [M0SS WT'ZS M98TS NB'LS o 193435 UIBIAl §T§
%00T paumQ 7e0z/6/t V/N T202/12/1T “JA 67 %€ 98eFUON IST|  PIW [M9ZTS NOTHS M00ES 0068 £ 20U3IMET ETT
£202/5/S zT0T/LT/TT
plos 28 '8 08 paumQ TZ0z/Le/L | 810T/1/9 | TROZ/ST/E ey (YNIN) 38emeH|  PIAL [M0OTS 30025 N60FS AST8S 4 uloyimeH z8-08
plos zg '8 98 paumo 6T0Z/ET/8 | 8T0T/T/9 | 8r0Z/PE/S BV (VNIN) SSWoH agelusH|  Hv  |MSZS 0SS ASTHS MNOEBS z uloyimeH g8-9g
pios paumo 610Z/€1/8 | 810Z/1/9 | 810T/¥T/S J|qEpIOYY - SOWOH s8e3aH| HY  [MOSS 300Z$ MN06ZS NOT TS ¥ Asuwinogis
LITBSTT , ueo 28pug "1s1H 000°002S LTT-STT
%00T Sunusy 810Z/L/S v/N 910z/8/zT | Spund jende] “JA G 3jou uolINASUOI[ PN [MOSS 3002S M0STS NE6'TS v wnjAsy THT
%00T Buipusy TZ0Z/8Z/T0 v/N 8102/2Z/€0 ‘4o pred usag sey a1oN| BN 98§ IS8TS APBTS WPLY'TS 8 wnjAsy 68T
8T0Z/ET/9 910Z/8/2T
%58 Sunusy 8T0Z/¥Z/S | 9T0Z/0€/6 /N Py uegn| BN |N9TEFS NSS NSZTS INLTS TTT aueaq sejls
%L6 Sunusy €T0Z/LT/2T | L00Z/TT/TT v/N wesd g3Ial PN |ATE6S INTTS JOTES WL'SES TZT 123415 U0l
Aouednaag Asuednoop pasopD uoissiwwo) | [encsddy 2inpnais ds uun/s vaywd | 1wy vayd | sun/oal JalL sHun 1eloud
1984e) puog 'Pd vayd HY/PIN #

s324nos Suipun4 pauie - panoaddy SuisnoH vYaud




20Z/01/9

Bupueuty Ing Butemy N £202/1Z/6 | €20T/6T/6 JUBID NT'SS A/vayd 000'00T's$ N9'TTS aBelen Bupjied Mmawojoylieg Sg
Buiso|) Bupuad WN £207/12/6 | €T0T/61/6 “IA OEfUROT %E ANo/vaud 000°000°E$ 09°L1S SHun mau /g mawojoleg (LT
WvS Jo THed
paudisapal Buiaq 303afcud £20z/9/v | €z0T/9T/E | £TOZ/9T/E ueo] pung Buinjonad A31) Auedwodde o3 ueo] 000°005'8% Wo6S |BIDJ3WIWIOD SN|d S}IUN SET "AUC) uoj|iweH Sgz
qeyay 2103siH
Aemsapun y1om 2zoe/18/E v/N Y/IN spungj Juei9 1y uegdn 000°000'T$ +HANTS uoelo3say 3|danis yuny) Asgn
AlD/wQyD sejou oml 000°000°€3 sHun €97
uoRaNLSUoD U| TTOT/6Z/L |TZOT/6T/S | eeoe/i/v g pooyloqysien 00000555 W9'ZYS '$3.1 03 S3UIP|ING T JO UOISIBAUCD ysnig Jajng
000'000'2$
Hoday ”
Suipun4 pauea SuisnoH 2as sapadosd ajdiynw £Toz/e/e Buiuewal Ne'T$ €318 |IIH niAsy ui diysiaumo SWIoH S3eLAH
g10Z/T/9 | 8TOT/¥e/S | 8TOT/TIT/S sjueld pue sueo] pooyloqydian LTAd 000°005°2S vaL 2woy 35e3JoUl 01 YNIN BIA 32UB)SISSY
paajdwod 8T0Z/5¢/L weidoud Buluiesy smo||ad AJLnaas pooysoqydisn (Zd) YBiaN 9TAd = 9°€S vd / 100425
4o uoneuawajdwl Jo} 0OO’00SS S2PNaY| |edaues 9T = 6'ES 000°005'2$ we/$ 100435 D]PPIL J3ULID} JO UOIEACURY 3IPPIA HAIND
3}I0M
paje|dwo) 810zZ/0Z/6 | 8T0T/TT/9 VN 8315 78 UOI3RI03531 JIOISIY HIOM JOLDIXS 10} JURlD |eJ2U39) 9T A4 000‘05¥S weTs Yijeay 123u3) yijeay
Aye1aads ojul Bup|ing JuedeA JO UOIBADUBY JeQ saneyd
“Jied 307 dunoqysiau e
spew aq o} sepesddn |BUONIPPY "I2URIIUD 3)S MU
‘piojHEH 40 AJID Yum Lonsunfuod ul padojanap aq o} pue sapetddn ygy pue 2pea 3ulpjing “saijl|ioe) 12320
uoieAOLA Yled 3|07 jo adodg "asiiyaue Jiayl pue (95H) dnolg pUE WooJjsel ‘suoissacuos o} sapesddn ‘wajsis
paia|dwod sHodg plojae yum Uonauniues uj auop ag 03 Uo||ig 18 oA punos 1g Sunydy| ‘Buneas pepesddn ‘siaysealq jo
8T0Z/91/z | 810Z/8/T | STOT/ZT/T | 'S1PBAAU0d USHINIISUD ploy pue sUolieAOUS] 895130 03 YAYD pooyioqyiaN £TA4 000°000°0T% wotS UBWIYSIGINYB. 10 JUsWade|dal ‘plal) Jo JuaWade|dal wnipess uojg
Sulpnjaul ‘Wn|pess Jo UoeAOUS) PUB Juawadeue|y
108[0.d ades5339.135 "Ny AUBM|Y JUaWdWod [ENCVERTEI)] . ssauisng pu3 FEEL T
paiRldued LT0Z/8T/TT | L10T/ST/9 | L102/5T/9 pue Bulpunj 3U0Z 3s1Wolg _Q%&n_,__zme BW_BS spuny pooyioqyBia 9T, AESRES 98L |10 o3 uonsauuos Buiqes ausejul paads ysiH | urel fany Aueqiy
‘anuaAdl [ejual
pazdafoad Jo %05 ueys ssa| ou (q) Jo eoeds Joefold sjqeses|
30 %05 Uey3 ssaj ou Joj (e) sasea| Jueua} Jo uolnIaxa uodn
JuaBuiuoD spung “Yy[ %E Yiim [e3ided s)l Jo [|e paniadal spooylogyBiau |euasly Aed
‘panssi 0D LT0Z/ET/S | L10T/9T/€ | LTOZ/OT/E |sey wayd [3un Wwiay Jeak-07 & JaAo anUUOD ||BYs JuawAeyd (auoz asiwold) 000°00€ VS WLZES pue Aueq|y Jaddn ‘JsesyiioN 2y} Buinias Asopes yimg
*SUORINGLISIP palinbal JaY30 1§ 3IAIBS 1qap US| 1541 pooyloqyBlaN 9TAL #ANH UOIIea) qof pue poo4 Ajunwwod,
4o uawAed J334e USED 3|E|IBAR J3U JO %0L BAII3) 03 YQHD ou1 Aeyoey o103y Jo uoljerousy
-uopezl|iqels uodn Ajyiuow pied aq pue y4v %T 21l
ue Juisn page|najes S9IAISS 3q9P WNWIUIW - URO| WEHS
61/0T/9 Uo
peOJ 10} YpSTS |BUOIIPPE (auoz asiwoid) 193415 yan3esSneN uo sawoy paidnaoo
pajp|dwon peoy LT0T/T/T | 9T0Z/8/CT |9T0T/0T/IT | paacidde pieog !peos palinbal 3oni3sU0d 03 pasn aaue|eg pooyloquBian 9TA4 000'S5S'T$ wyes -laumo Ajlwej-om3 T Jo uolenisuoy llouy naxpelg
*530| Buisnoy Joy saieya uo13oauuod JJIA J0J Pash 098'07S
(pooyloqydiau s||iH an[g) 18815 Aquels uo
i43u# S3IUN PAUMO PUB [BIUSS MBU TG JO UCHINIISUOD e sapmog
paga|dwod yayd 910Z/0¢/6 |9102/ST/6 | 9102/6/6 owap 40} Jued wsg pooyioqydiaN 9TAL 000°0005% wots 1 398[oud Buisnoy Jun-QT{ JO UC!
sniels |enoiddy pieog leacsddy ainpnns spund yadd unowy Yayd 23al uondisag efoid
UOISSIWIWO) vado IBUIWWOY
puog

syaloud pooysoqysiaN vayd




